
 

 

 

Janie Berry 
Director of Legal Services 
County Hall 
Matlock 
Derbyshire 
DE4 3AG 
 
Extension 38394 
Direct Dial 01629 538394 
Ask for Juliette 
Normington 
 

 
PUBLIC 

 
To:  Members of Cabinet Member meeting - Health and Communities 
 
 
 

Wednesday, 19 June 2019 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
Please attend a meeting with the Cabinet Member - Health and 
Communities to be held at 4.00 pm on Thursday, 27 June 2019 in 
Committee Room 3, County Hall, Matlock, DE4 3AG, the agenda for 
which is set out below. 
 
Yours faithfully, 

 
JANIE BERRY 
Director of Legal Services  
 
A G E N D A 
 
PART I - NON-EXEMPT ITEMS  
 
1.   Apologies for Absence  

 
To receive apologies for absence (if any) 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest  
 
To receive declarations of interest (if any) 
 

3.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 2) 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

To confirm the non-exempt minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet Member 
– Health and Communities held on 23 May 2019 
 

To consider the non-exempt reports of the Director of Public Health on:  
 
4 (a)   Derbyshire School Holiday Food Programme (Pages 3 - 6) 

 
4 (b)   Grant funding to Shift Together to deliver the Fit4Life Programme in 

workplaces across Derbyshire (Pages 7 - 10) 
 

4 (c)   Reducing the Harm of Substance Misuse in Derbyshire (Pages 11 - 14) 
 

To consider the report of the Executive Director Commissioning, Communities and 
Policy on: 
 
5.   Action Grants Programme (Pages 15 - 38) 

 
 



 

1 
 

PUBLIC                                                                                      
                           
MINUTES of a meeting of the CABINET MEMBER FOR HEALTH AND 
COMMUNITIES held on 23 May 2019 at County Hall, Matlock. 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillor C Hart – Cabinet Member 
 
 
21/19  MINUTES   RESOLVED that the non-exempt minutes of the 
meeting of the Cabinet Member for Health and Communities held on 11 April  
2019 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Cabinet Member.  
 
22/19  OUTCOME OF THE CONSULTATION ON THE DRAFT 
TACKLING HATE CRIME TOGETHER POLICY  Consultation on a 
proposed draft policy in relation to Hate Crime ran from 28 January - 11 March 
2019.  21 responses were received of which 86% agreed with the aims of the 
policy, but a small number felt that the policy needed to be strengthened in 
relation to people with a learning disability;  86% were happy with the definition 
of Hate Crime and Hate Incidents, but a small number queried or misunderstood 
the detailed examples given; and 86% felt it was clear how people reported 
Hate Crimes, but a small number felt the process could be made more user 
friendly. 
 
  Following the consultation, minor amendments have been made to the 
Tackling Hate Crime Together Policy and the revised document was attached 
to the report. 
 
 RESOLVED to (1) note the consultation feedback; and  
 
 (2) approve adoption of the Tackling Hate Crime Together Policy by the 
Council. 
 
23/19  GRANT TO DERBYSHIRE GYPSY LIAISON GROUP 
An application for a grant for the financial year 2018-2019 has been received 
from the Derbyshire Gypsy Liaison Group, requesting £3,500. 
 
 The Group plays an extremely important role in supporting the three 
Council owned Traveller sites in Derbyshire and also produces a newsletter 
"The Traveller", assistance with private site planning applications and dealing 
with issues of education, health and welfare of Travellers.  The County 
Council has held regular discussions with the Liaison Group on issues arising 
from unauthorised encampments, site management and on developing good 
practice in dealing with unauthorised encampments. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

2 
 

 RESOLVED that the Derbyshire Gypsy Liaison Group be awarded 
£3,500 for the year 2018-2019, subject to the County Council's standard 
conditions of grants. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



PUBLIC 
Author: Ange Kirkham/Sara Bains  

1 
 

 
DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
MEETING WITH CABINET MEMBER, HEALTH AND COMMUNITIES 

 
27 June 2019 

 
Report of the Director of Public Health 

 
Derbyshire School Holiday Food Programme 

 
1. Purpose of the report: 

To seek approval from the Cabinet Member for Health and Communities for 
the grant payment of £20,000 to Rural Action Derbyshire to continue the 
delivery of the Schools Holiday Food Programme for a 12 month period from 
July 2019. 

 
 
2. Information and analysis: 

The Derbyshire School Holiday Food Programme is a very successful 
countywide programme addressing national concerns on the extent and 
causes of hunger amongst children during school holiday periods.  
 
In summer 2016 Feeding Derbyshire established 19 projects in local 
communities experiencing high levels of deprivation, and with high levels 
of eligibility for Free School Meals.  Working in partnership with schools, 
faith communities, children’s centres, Big Local grant-funded communities 
and district and borough councils, the projects aim to ensure children 
benefit from nutritious food and enrichment activities during school holiday 
periods throughout the year. 
 
Since 2016 the programme has gone from strength to strength and 
subsequently an additional 12 projects have been established - these are 
funded by FareShare, bringing the total number of projects in Derbyshire 
to 31. 
 
FareShare is a UK charity ensuring surplus food reaches vulnerable 
groups by redistributing good food to frontline services.  Currently Public 
Health at Derbyshire County Council fund the annual subscription fee to 
FareShare to supply 19 projects with healthy, nutritious, in-date food.  
Each project (made up of multiple partners and volunteers) in turn make 
up the food to provide children with a range of breakfasts, packed lunches, 
snacks and drinks, alongside activities ranging from arts and crafts, family 
reading (DCC Library Services), games and sports (district and borough 
councils), family cook and eat workshops, Mad Science and dance. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4(a)



 Agenda Item No 

 2 

 
 

National evidence shows that: 

 In the UK over one in four children are living in poverty once housing 

costs have been deducted from their income.  This is reflected in the 

rates seen in Derbyshire. 

 Children who regularly miss out on meals and arrive at school 

hungry and thirsty are at a significant disadvantage, lacking 

concentration and the ability to learn.   

 The loss of free school meals during the holiday costs a family £30-

40 per week.  

 

  
During the school holiday periods in the 2018/19 academic year, the 
projects funded through the Council have achieved the following: 

 supplied 37,113 meals in total to 1,395 children per week during the 
Summer holidays  

 supplied projects with enough food to give out 1,052 food parcels 
over the Christmas school holiday period 

 supplied projects with 5,030 meals over the Easter school holidays.  
This included sufficient food for 440 cook and eat meals 

 
Additional funding for a 12 month period will ensure continuation of the 
programme.  The funding will support Rural Action Derbyshire to manage 
the School Holiday Food Programme from July 2019.  This will include 
direct liaison with FareShare and local project providers, and operational 
management of the programme to support the continuation of the existing 
31 projects, and collection of information on numbers of young people and 
families accessing the projects.   

 
 

In April 2019, the Feeding Derbyshire Partnership agreed to review the 
delivery and sustainability of the School Holiday Food Programme as part 
of the broader Feeding Derbyshire initiative.  The review will allow the 
Feeding Derbyshire Partnership to identify alternative funding sources to 
secure future delivery of the existing programme, and reduce reliance on 
funding from Public Health, in light of continued year-on-year reductions to 
the Public Health grant.  

 
3. Social Value considerations: 

Derbyshire School Holiday Food Programme as part of the wider Feeding 
Derbyshire initiative is ensuring the sustainability of local charities. The 
Public Health grant funding will afford a lead-in time for Rural Action 

Page 4



 Agenda Item No 

 3 

Derbyshire and FareShare to secure future funds to manage, develop and 
sustain the School Holiday Food Programme over subsequent years. 

 
Feeding Derbyshire and FareShare is supporting local volunteers to gain 
the skills and personal development opportunities required to transition into 
paid employment.  
 

4.  Financial considerations: 
The total amount for the project is £20,000 which will be met within the 
Public Health Ring-fenced budget for 2019-20. This will be grant funded to 
Rural Action Derbyshire. 

 
5. Other considerations: 

In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been 
considered:  legal, prevention of crime and disorder, equality of 
opportunity, human resources, environmental, health, property and 
transport considerations. 

  
6. Background papers: 

Cabco Report 30 November 2017 Feeding Derbyshire Sustainability Plan  
 
7. Key Decision:  

No 
 
8. Call-in:  
 Is it required that call-in be waived for any decision on this report? 
 No 
 
9. Officer's Recommendation: 

 
That the Cabinet Member, Health and Communities, approves the proposed 
award of £20,000 from the Public Health budget to Rural Action Derbyshire. 

 
 

Dean Wallace 
Director of Public Health 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC 
Author: Lucy Gavens  

1 
 

 
DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
MEETING WITH CABINET MEMBER, HEALTH AND COMMUNITIES 

 
27 June 2019 

 
Report of the Director of Public Health 

 
Grant funding to Shift Together to deliver the Fit4Life Programme in 

workplaces across Derbyshire 
 

 
1. Purpose of the report: 
To seek cabinet member approval to award a grant of £100,000 to Shift 
Together (formerly The Community Sports Trust) to continue the Fit4Life project 
which aims to increase physical activity level in workplaces across Derbyshire. 
 
2. Information and analysis: 
Levels of overweight and obesity in Derbyshire are significantly higher that the 
England average. Overweight and obesity develops over time as a result of an 
imbalance between energy intake (i.e. what we eat and drink) and energy usage 
(i.e. how active we area). Whilst on average people in Derbyshire are more likely 
to be active than the England average (68% compared with 66%), our adult 
population are less likely to: 
 

- Eat 5 portions or more of fruit and veg per day 
- Do any walking in a week  
- Cycle 3 times in a week (either for travel or leisure) 

 
In addition to supporting people to maintain a healthy weight, regular physical 
activity is important for reducing the risk of cardiovascular disease, certain 
cancers, type 2 diabetes, falls and mental ill health. Physical activity can also 
improve health outcomes and quality of life of people who already have long-
term conditions, for example it can lead to reduced weight and improved insulin 
sensitivity in people with type 2 diabetes. 

 
Current levels of physical inactivity are partly due to insufficient participation in 
physical activity during leisure time and an increase in sedentary behaviour 
during occupational and domestic activities. Likewise, an increase in the use of 
"passive" modes of transport e.g. car driving, has also been associated with 
declining physical activity levels.  
 
The workplace has been identified as one setting in which efforts can be focused 
effectively to improve health and wellbeing, and reduce physical inactivity. In 
2018 Derbyshire County Council funded a pilot of the Fit4Life programme at 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4(b)



 Agenda Item No 

 2 

Chesterfield Royal Hospital and in Adult Care. The pilot programme has 
included: 
 
a) Body Health MOTs, including online assessment, which are delivered by 

our DCC Live Life Better Derbyshire Team.  
b) One-to-one coaching by a Fit4Life Coach. Staff who are identified through 

the health MOT are invited to join a programme that seeks to understand 
lifestyle patterns and provide one to one coaching and motivational 
interviewing to support lifestyle behaviour changes. 

c) Use of an ActiveInsight accelerometer for 12 weeks. Participants wear 
the band for 1 week initially with no coaching, followed by a further 11 
weeks and engage in fortnightly 30 minute coaching sessions to consider 
activity levels and lifestyle behaviours which may improve levels of 
physical and mental wellbeing. Results are tracked using the band 
readouts as well as questionnaires at 4 and 12 weeks. Participants are 
encouraged to join local activity sessions appropriate to their shift pattern, 
fitness levels and interests. Band readouts are considered by the 
participants and the coach to identify areas for improvement. 

 
Interim evaluation of the pilot has been positive. Referrals began in Autumn 
2018 and the programme coach is working on a 1:1 basis with participants to 
provide coaching, advice and signposting. The accelerometer is giving 
participants accurate and detailed information about their lifestyle behaviours, 
sleep patterns and time spent being active or sedentary. At the end of January 
2019, 20 ActiveInsight accelerometers had been issued, and 27 participants 
had registered to join the next cohort in Spring 2019. 
 
Early findings from the first cohort of participants had recorded: 

- An increase in energy expenditure 

- An increase in sleep duration 

- A reduction in sedentary time (by an average of 1 hour a day) 

- An increase in active time (by more than 2 hours a day on average) 

 

In addition, the programme coach is working with HR teams at the hospital and 
group managers in ASC to explore a variety of methods to promote a culture of 
physical activity in the workplace. The result of this work has been the 
development of new physical activity related opportunities such as:  
 

- New activity sessions introduced in Staveley and Hasland Adult Social 
Care settings. 

- Agreed use of the physio room gym equipment at the Staveley Centre for 
staff after the end of shifts.  

- A Jog Group at the hospital is now regularly active and open to all. 
- Staff at Hasland ASC have started a ‘weight group’ to monitor their weight 

together informally and increase levels of physical activity. 
 

Page 8



 Agenda Item No 

 3 

To further explore the impact of the programme on behaviour change 
Nottingham Trent University have been commissioned to run an independent 
evaluation of the pilot, this report will be available in late 2019. 
 
There are a number of opportunities to build on this programme to support the 
health and wellbeing of workforces across Derbyshire, and to increase the 
interconnectedness with other programmes of activity such as our Live Life 
Better Derbyshire Services, Healthy Workplaces Derbyshire and the Public 
Health Locality Programme. 
 
We are seeking permission to fund an expansion of the programme over the 
next 2 years, to both support other work settings and to enable the development 
of a self-sustaining model for Fit4Life over time. We consider that the 
programme should be tested in a number of different workplaces, beginning with 
Call Derbyshire. Given that the programme coach will need to build strong 
relationships with teams working in the locality (e.g. LLBD delivery staff, Health 
Workplaces Derbyshire and the Public Health Locality Teams) and develop a 
good understanding of opportunities available in the local area, we propose that 
the work should be focused in 2 and no more than 3 of our Derbyshire Districts 
and Boroughs. One will be the Derbyshire Dales (given the location of Call 
Derbyshire), with the other site(s) to be agreed between Shift Together and the 
Public Health Physical Activity, Healthy Workplaces and Live Life Better 
Derbyshire Teams. 
 
Through the proposed expansion of this project as a minimum we would expect 
the Provider (SHIFT) to deliver the following: 
 

 Regular and robust reporting of findings i.e. quarterly reports  

 Illustration of creation of appropriate links to ensure sustainable activities 
to maintain behaviour change.  

 Demonstrate clear links with Live Life Better Derbyshire  

 Expand programme across up to 3 districts (to include at least 5 
workplaces) 

 Expand into different types of workplaces i.e. other places of work with 
set shift patterns that make it difficult to access traditional physical activity 
opportunities.  

 
3. Social Value considerations: 
There is a considerable body of evidence demonstrating the benefits of physical 
activity in terms of both treating and preventing diseases.  Exercise has been 
called a “wonder drug” or “miracle cure”. Increasing physical activity improves 
health for those with chronic conditions and prevents many common serious 
medical conditions. The benefit is observed with small amounts of physical 
activity: 30 minutes, 5 times a week. For children 60 minutes per day is the 
recommended minimum. Lack of physical activity is the most recently 
recognised modifiable risk factor of all the large contributors to ill-health (poor 
nutrition, physical inactivity, alcohol consumption and smoking).  

Page 9



 Agenda Item No 

 4 

 
Additionally, this programme allows us to capture objective activity data, which 
is difficult and therefore not something that is often captured in evaluations of 
physical activity interventions. As such this programme is something that could 
be disseminated widely to shape practice elsewhere, raising the profile of DCC 
as an Enterprising Council. 
 
4. Financial considerations: 
The total value of the award is £100,000; £50,000 each year for 2 years. This 
funding will also include an evaluation of the project.  
 
The finance for this project will be provided from within the Public Health budget. 
 
5. Legal considerations 
The Council is permitted to make such payments under the “General Power of 
Competence” set out in the Localism Act 2011. A grant agreement shall be used 
to set out the terms and conditions for which the grant is made. The recipient of 
the grant is not contractually obliged to deliver the services, although the Council 
would seek to claw back the grant in appropriate circumstances were there to 
be significant non-performance of any grant conditions. 
 
6. Other considerations: 
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been 
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equality of opportunity, 
environmental, health, property and transport considerations. 
  
7. Background papers: 
Workplace Shift - Physical Activity Pilots with staff from Chesterfield Royal 
Hospital (CRH) and Derbyshire County Council (DCC) Adult Care 8 March 
2018. 
 
8. Key Decision: 
No 
 
9 Call-in:  
No 
 
10. Officer's Recommendation: 
That the Cabinet Member approves the award of the grant of £100,000 to Shift 
Together for the delivery of the Fit4Life Programme in workplaces across 
Derbyshire. The expansion to the programme will begin in August 2019 and 
continue for 2 years. 
 
 

Dean Wallace 
Director of Public Health 

Page 10



PUBLIC 
Author: Martyn Shore  

1 
 

 
DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
MEETING WITH CABINET MEMBER, HEALTH AND COMMUNITIES 

 
27 June 2019 

 
Report of the Director of Public Health 

 
REDUCING THE HARM OF SUBSTANCE MISUSE IN DERBYSHIRE 

 
 
1.      Purpose of the report: 
 
To seek Cabinet Member approval for the award of Recovery Month grants to a 
total value of £3400. 
  
2. Information and analysis: 
 
Recovery Month takes place in September each year and is a national event. It 
has been celebrated in Derbyshire for the past four years and is an opportunity 
to showcase recovery from substance misuse, to reduce stigma and to highlight 
that recovery is achievable. Local activities have previously concentrated on 
large scale events which take considerable resources to organise and have 
tended to locate in Chesterfield as our largest town. Due to this, a number of 
smaller but active recovery organisations from other parts of the county have 
struggled to take part in a meaningful way, and recovery month in Derbyshire 
was starting lose momentum. On 13 November 2018 the Strategic Director for 
Adult Care approved the allocation of £20,000 over a three year period to 
encourage individuals, treatment services and recovery organisations to 
undertake their own projects, events and activities in their own localities. This 
approach is more inclusive of our geographically diverse county, and has 
revitalised the efforts of both local and countywide organisations and their 
service users. An annual showcase event, where achievements around recovery 
are recognised, has been planned for later in 2019. 
 
This new approach has been welcomed by local organisations, and has 
generated a renewed energy and enthusiasm for collaborative working around 
recovery. In order to ensure that finance was not a barrier to delivering 
innovative and local recovery events, or engaging with larger organised recovery 
events, small grants have been offered to local organisations who support 
people in recovery.  
 
Applications have been received at this stage for organisations to take part in the 
Recovery Games for 2019 and for other activities within Recovery Month, which 
as stated earlier, is September.  

Page 11

Agenda Item 4(c)



 Agenda Item No 

 2 

 
Recovery Games applications 
The annual event, which has been running for five years, celebrates the success 
and achievements of those who are in recovery from long term health or drug 
and/ or alcohol addiction. Teams are made up of people from within the recovery 
community who have either ‘lived experience’ or who work, volunteer or mentor 
in the drug and alcohol service. Bids were welcomed for small amounts to cover 
costs of attending the event, including refreshments and fuel.  
 
Four applications were submitted and considered by an evaluation team 
comprising the Public Health Lead and the Health Improvement Practitioner for 
substance misuse using a pre-determined, objective scoring template. All 
organisations successfully scored against the scoring criteria.  
 
One organisation had duplicated costs in their application that were covered by 
another application and therefore were advised that their application would not 
be considered.  
 
It is therefore proposed to provide grants to the following three organisations to 
enable them to engage in the Recovery Games for 2019: 
 

 
 

 
Organisation 
name 
 

 
Location 

 
Event 

 
Service Provided 

 
Cost 

1. 
 
 

Chesterfield FC 
Community Trust 

Doncaster Recovery Games Coach hire, 
refreshments 

£664 

2. 
 
 

Derbyshire 
Veterans HQ 

Doncaster Recovery Games Fuel to pick participants 
up and take them to 
Proact Stadium for 
coach 

£50 

3 Stand To  
 
 

Doncaster Recovery Games T Shirts and fuel to pick 
participants up and take 
them to Proact Stadium 
for coach 

£260 

 
All organisations currently deliver projects with people in recovery in Derbyshire. 
 
Recovery Month applications 
 
For Recovery Month, bids were welcomed for amounts to cover celebrating 
recovery locally. We encouraged innovation and creativity. 
 
Five applications were submitted for this round from four organisations and were 
considered by an evaluation team comprising the Public Health Lead and the 
Health Improvement Practitioner for substance misuse using a pre-determined, 
objective scoring template. Four applications scored successfully against the 

Page 12



 Agenda Item No 

 3 

scoring criteria with one further application on hold pending a more robust 
financing and delivery plan.   
 
It is therefore proposed to provide grants to the following organisations to enable 
them to engage in the Recovery Month activities for 2019: 
 

 
 

 
Organisation 
name 
 

 
Location 

 
Event 

 
Funding specifics 

 
Cost 

1. 
 
 

Derbyshire 
Veterans HQ 

County wide Crooked Spire 
and Red Arrows 
modelling activity 
and display 

Materials and display 
events 

£266 

2. 
 
 

The Zink Project High Peak Community Café Food, facility rent, 
publicity, expenses 

£320 

3 Stand To 
 
 

County wide Fly Fishing event 
at Ladybower 

Fishing passes, travel 
costs, including mini 
bus 

£1210 

4 Derventio – 
Growing Lives 
Project 
 
 

Erewash and 
Amber Valley 

Recovery Garden 
establishment 
and open day  

Garden materials and 
refreshments for open 
day 

£630 

 
All organisations currently deliver projects with people in recovery in Derbyshire. 
 
 
3 Social Value considerations: 
 
Social value benefits of recovery are highlighted by the ‘Life in Recovery’ Study 
(September, 2015) by Professor David Best from Sheffield Hallam University. This 
study showed that people moving into recovery were more likely to be in education 
or employment, to volunteer, eat healthily and take regular exercise.  
 
  
4. Financial considerations: 
 
The total amount allocated to develop Recovery Month activity in Derbyshire is 
£20,000 over three years. This was approved from underspends from the 
demand-led elements of the substance misuse budget which is met through the 
Public Health Grant. 
 
5.       Legal/ HR considerations: 
 
The Council’s standard grant agreement shall be used to set out the terms and 
conditions for which the grant is made, which provides for clawback of funding in 
certain circumstances and shall also provide that the Council is not liable for any 
employment liabilities. 

Page 13



 Agenda Item No 

 4 

 
6.       Other considerations: 
 
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been 
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equality of opportunity, 
environmental, health, property and transport considerations. 
  
7. Background papers: 
 
Adult Care Senior Management Team paper 13 November 2018 “Reducing the 
harm of substance misuse in Derbyshire” 
 
Paper for Cabinet Member, Health and Communities 11th April 2019 “Reducing 
the harm of substance misuse in Derbyshire” 
 
8. Key Decision: No 
 
9. Call-in:  
 
Is it required that call-in be waived for any decision on this report? No 
 
10. Officer's Recommendation: 
 
That the Cabinet Member for Health and Communities approves the award of 
grants as detailed in the report to support Recovery activities for 2019 in 
Derbyshire.  
 
That the Cabinet Member agrees to accept further reports over the next two 
years relating to the award of other small grants to support Recovery Month in 
Derbyshire. 
 
 
 
 

Dean Wallace 
Director of Public Health 

Page 14



PUBLIC   
 

 

1 
 

 DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  
 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HEALTH AND COMMUNITIES 
 

27 June 2019 
 

Report of the Strategic Director Commissioning, Communities and 
Policy 

 
ACTION GRANTS PROGRAMME 

 
1.  Purpose of the Report 
 
To provide an update on the projects supported under round four of the 
community activity and community safety Action Grants Programme. 
 
2.  Information and Analysis 
 
At its meeting on 5 April 2018, Cabinet approved the establishment of a two 
year Action Grants Programme totalling £1.5 million to provide support to 
champion local communities, encourage local groups to deliver community 
activity and to support the Council’s priorities in relation to resilient and thriving 
communities.  The Action Grant Programme will run until May 2020 and 
enables local groups to apply for three levels of funding across four grant 
areas covering youth activity, community safety, community activity and 
physical/sports activity as follows:  
 

 Small Grants (up to £500): Provides funding for 2,000 small scale, one off 
projects delivering positive activities in local communities 

 Medium Grants (up to £5,000): Provides funding for new projects in local 
communities which can demonstrate local support and which have a more 
significant local impact. 

 Large Grants (up to £10,000): Provides funding for new projects which 
have longer term viability, will continue to impact local people into the 
future and might cover more than one programme theme. 

 
All projects need to be able to meet the following criteria: 
 

 Support activity benefiting a designated area or area of interest in 
Derbyshire (excluding Derby City). 

 Be time limited and not require ongoing funding from the Council. 

 Complement, not duplicate other funding sources such as the Public 
Health Locality Fund, the members Community Leadership Scheme etc. 

 Show how activity can benefit the community beyond the life of the funding. 

 Meet an identified need which can be evidenced. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



PUBLIC   
 

 

2 
 

 Be delivered promptly and within agreed timescales. 

 Show how local people have helped in the identification of activity or have 
been consulted/engaged. 

 Show what difference will be made. 
 
Projects that meet the selection criteria highlighted above are reviewed by an 
officer panel.  Strategic Directors have delegated responsibility for the 
approval of recommended projects that fall within their remit. Cabinet agreed 
at its meeting on 5 April 2018 that approvals would be reported to the Cabinet 
Member for Health and Communities on a quarterly basis.  
 
This report provides an update on the applications received, and approved, for 
the community activity and community safety grants under round four of the 
programme. 
 
Round Four  
The deadline for receipt of applications for rounds four of both the community 
activity grants and community safety grants was 31 March 2019. In round four 
applicants were only able to apply for a small grant as the medium and large 
grants are only available on an annual basis, with the next deadline being 30 
June 2019. 
 

 Community Activity Grants - Community Activity Grants provide funding 
to help local residents, groups and organisations support the development 
of local community activities and projects which help local people to come 
together to shape the future of their neighbourhood. Funding is available to 
support 375 local projects which cover the following types of activity: 

 
o Setting up a community group, local fair or festival  
o Developing a community space 
o Protecting the local environment 
o Supporting vulnerable groups, for example setting up a club for carers 
o Promoting a community website etc. 

 
124 small grant applications, set out in Appendix A to this report, were 
received under round four requesting funding totalling £59,370. A small 
officer panel, comprising of representatives from Policy, Adult Care, 
Children’s Services, the Library Service and the Voluntary and Community 
Sector met to assess the merits of each application against the required 
criteria. In total 105 applications, the details of which are set out in 
Appendix A, were approved to the value of £47,511. 

 

 Community Safety Grants - Community Safety Grants provide funding to 
help local residents, groups and organisations support communities to be 

Page 16



PUBLIC   
 

 

3 
 

safe places to live and work. Funding is available to support 500 local 
projects which cover the following types of activity: 

 
o Address local needs to combat crime, disorder and Anti-Social 

Behaviour  
o Tackle harm caused by alcohol, drugs and violence 
o Reduce the fear of crime in communities 
o Help build cohesive communities and encourage diversionary activities 
o Help raise awareness of scams and online fraud 

 
Three small grant applications under round four of the grant programme, 
set out in Appendix B to this report, were received requesting funding 
totalling £1,500. A small panel comprising of Community Safety Officers 
met to assess the merits of each application against the required criteria. 
All three applications, the details of which are set out in Appendix B, were 
approved.  
 

Moving Forward 
Monitoring of the Programme, including take up of the different levels of grants 
as well as geographical coverage, will take place on a regular basis to ensure 
equality of access across different communities in Derbyshire. This will ensure 
that there is some flexibility in the Programme as it moves forward and that 
spend is maximised.  It will also help recognise those communities where 
more support may be required to identify and promote relevant projects. 
 
4.  Financial Considerations 
 
The total cost of applications for both the community activity and community 
safety grant programmes stands at £49,011 and can be met from the Action 
Grants Programme budget. To ensure that there is compliance with the 
Council’s Financial Regulations, all approved projects will be issued with 
standard conditions of grant and will be subject to monitoring and evaluation. 
 
5.  Other Considerations  
 
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been 
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, legal and human rights, equal 
opportunities, human resources, environmental, health and property and 
transport considerations. 
 
6. Background Papers 
 
Report to Cabinet on the Action Grant Programme 5 April 2018 
Report to Cabinet Member for Health and Communities 4 October 2018 
Report to Cabinet Member for Health and Communities 10 January 2019 
Report to Cabinet Member for Health and Communities 11 April 2019 

Page 17



PUBLIC   
 

 

4 
 

  
 
 
8.  Key Decision 
 
No 
 
9.  Call-in  
 
Is it required that call-in be waived for any decision on this report?  No 
 
10.  Officer’s Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that the Cabinet Member for Health and Communities 
notes the applications approved as set out below: 
 
1. 105 small Grants for Community Activity approved to the value of £47,511. 
2. Three small Grants for Community Safety approved to the value of £1,500. 

 
Emma Alexander 

STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR COMMISSIONING,  
COMMUNITIES AND POLICY 

Page 18



PUBLIC   
 

 

5 
 

Appendix A – Small Grants Community Activity 

Ref Organisation Brief Description Funding 
requested 

Grant 
Awarded 

Panel Decision 

CA1 T.time Gathering Towards children's activities, computer software 
and food and refreshments to get the community 
together on a regular basis 

£500 £350 Part Fund - food and 
refreshments not eligible 

CA2 Overseal Arts Kommunity 
(OAK’s) 

Towards setting them up as a community group 
who plan and develop activities for the village - 
towards promotion, venue hire,  volunteer 
expenses and first aid training  

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA3 Chesterfield and NE  
Derbyshire Muslim Women’s 
Group - Laptop 

To purchase a laptop and software to improve 
communication, encourage creativity and 
develop publicity, improve human resource 
management, save time and reduce storage 
space   

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA4 Bonsall Seniors To purchase a 6 x 3 metre marquee to be used 
in their fundraising events throughout the year 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA5 Harvest Moon To support the annual Harvest Moon Festival 
which is held at a local pond, this provides 
activities for the children and an evening 
procession. To hire mobile toilets and an artist  
to lead the craft activities 

£500 £0 Not fund – project not 
going ahead 

CA6  Bonsall Parish Council - 
Community Noticeboard 

To purchase a notice board which would be in 
addition to the parish council notice board so 
they can create an open space for advertising 
village events and activities 

£500   Awaiting further 
information from the 
applicant 

CA7 Hatton Parish Council - Litter 
Bin and Bench - additional 
information given 

 Towards a litter bin and bench for the former 
Hatton School Playing Field which was donated 
to the parish council by Nestles so they did not 
take on the responsibility of equipment or other 
items but would like to develop it as a family 
area 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

P
age 19



PUBLIC   
 

 

6 
 

CA8 1st Hartshorne Scout Group To purchase litter-picking equipment to improve 
the local environment and promote both 
recycling and general responsibility to both the 
scouts themselves and the wider local 
Hartshorne community 

£480 £480 Fund - eligible 

CA9  Wardlow Village Hall The purchase of tools and materials to enable 
them to renovate and modernise the community 
space in the village hall. They would also like to 
purchase flyers to advertise the new space to 
the wider community 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA10 Dove Holes Cricket Club 
Patio Area 

To provide a new patio/paved access and 
seating area to replace the unsafe current 
facility. The area is to be used for public 
fundraising events by five cricket teams, two 
schools and the general local community 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA11 Tupton Seniors Group The purchase of two large fans and a bingo 
machine and other general refurbishments to 
the public social room to facilitate more use by 
isolated older people 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA12 Breathe Easy Clay Cross To purchase a laptop and assorted 
entertainment (e.g. board games, puzzles, bingo 
machine and quizzes) to provide more social 
interaction for isolated adults 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA13 Willington Carnival To hire a climbing wall, predominantly for 
teenagers for the Willington Carnival 

£475 £0 Not fund - hire of a 
climbing wall not eligible 

CA14 1st Holbrook Scout Group The purchase of a large 'event shelter' that all 
scouts, cubs and beavers can congregate 
within, and a number of portable camping tables 
that they can take on hikes. 

£340 £340 Fund - eligible 

CA15 Eckington Development 
Company Ltd (Eckington 
Summer Festival)  

To purchase semi-permanent advertising signs / 
banners, that can be reused each year. 

£420 £420 Fund - eligible 

P
age 20



PUBLIC   
 

 

7 
 

CA16 Junction Arts - Tapton Lock 
Festival 

Towards arts and crafts participatory workshops 
and volunteer travel costs for the Tapton Lock 
Festival 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA17 Holmesfield Gardening 
Association 

To fund better speakers for their monthly 
meetings, attendance numbers have dropped  
significantly as they cannot afford good 
speakers 

£500 £0 Not fund - guest speakers 
not eligible 

CA18 1st Matlock Green 
Rainbows, 1st Matlock 
Green Brownies, 1st Matlock 
Green Guides  

New badge / record books are required due to 
Girlguiding UK changing its badges and 
activities. The £500 would pay for a book for 
every current member of the various groups. 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA19 Chapel en le Frith 
Community Group 

The Group are holding a Community Market 
event, comprised of stalls for local talent and 
businesses to display their goods and services. 
The funding would be to enable the group to 
offer the stalls to the stallholders free of charge. 

£250 £0 Not fund - many of the 
items are not eligible for 
funding hire of tables and 
chairs, insurance and 
children’s entertainers, in 
addition it was felt that this 
was more about promoting 
small businesses 

CA20 Chinley Community 
Association 

To provide musical instruments and venue hire 
to allow for dementia sufferers to actively 
participate in musical performances. 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA22 Blackwell Parish Council Upgrading of the cutlery and crockery at all three 
community centres. There are a number of 
events at these venues planned for the near 
future - new cutlery and crockery are considered 
important for their success. 

£500 £0 Not fund – it was felt that 
the parish council should 
fund these items as an 
income is generated 
through hiring out the 
facilities 

CA23 Eyam Parochial Church 
Council 

To purchase two 'smart' TVs, to enable 
connection to the internet and the playing of 
games, to support the after-schools clubs run in 
the building. 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

P
age 21



PUBLIC   
 

 

8 
 

CA24 Newton Carnival Team To hold a series of community workshops to 
support local community groups and individuals 
to create floats and costumes for the carnival. 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA25 1st South Normanton Guides New 'badge / record books' and activity cards 
are required due to Girlguiding UK changing its 
badges and activities. 

£200 £200 Fund - eligible 

CA26 Eckington Parish Council - 
Dementia Friendly 
Screenings 

Proposing to pilot a monthly series of 'Dementia 
Friendly Film Screenings' for 6 months. Funding 
is required to purchase screening licences 
(needed for every screening). Hall hire, staffing 
and refreshment costs will all be met by the 
Parish Council. 

£498 £498 Fund - eligible 

CA27 Girlguiding Amber District New 'badge / record books' and activity cards 
are required due to Girlguiding UK changing its 
badges and activities. There are 11 groups. 

£450 £450 Fund - eligible 

CA28 Elvaston Communities 
Group 

The purchase of a 3m x 3m premium framed 
Gazebo for the use of First Aid personnel at 
various activities run throughout the year by 
Elvaston Communities Group. It would also be 
used through the maintenance of Elvaston 
Sensory Garden (particularly when using power 
tools in inclement conditions). 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA29 Friends of Brearley Park - 
event date 21 April 2019 

Organising and holding of an Easter event on 
the park - children's entertainers, egg hunts, 
crafts etc. Possible purchase of a Gazebo. 

£500 £0 Not fund – the event took 
place on Sunday 21 April 

CA30 Crafty Chatters Funding is required to purchase materials 
needed to run a new art sessions project, 
attended by dementia sufferers. To purchase 
equipment for block printing, ceramic painting, 
card marking, glass painting etc. 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA31 Talisman Explorers To purchase new tents and cooking equipment, 
as the current equipment is unuseable in 
inclement weather. This would be used 
approximately six times per year 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

P
age 22



PUBLIC   
 

 

9 
 

CA32 Crich Patient Participation 
Group 

To create an information event that will attract 
members of the community, resulting in 
increased participation in health related groups 
and activities. The event will be integrated with a 
major celebration organized by the local Scout 
Group. Funding towards hire of the Glebe 
Centre, purchase of leaflets to deliver one to 
every house in Crich, Fritchley and 
Whatstandwell, and a few banners.  

£490 £490 Fund - eligible 

CA33 People Express - Golden 
Tales 

To hire a professional artist to work with the 
participants of 'Golden Rainbows', a series of 
monthly written / oral history sessions with the 
local over 50 LGBT+ community. The intention 
is for the artist to produce a visual 
representation of their stories to be seen by the 
wider local population. 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA34 1st Dronfield Guides New resources are required due to Girlguiding 
UK changing its requirements. Skills Builders 
Packs for level 3, 4 and 5, ongoing unit meeting 
activities, handbooks and badgebooks. There 
are 20 girl guides, and a number of Brownie 
units. 

£320 £320 Fund - eligible 

CA36 Creswell Model Village 
Neighbourhood and Friends 
residents’ group 

To purchase a Public Address system to be 
used at the 2019 Creswell Gala, and 
subsequent galas and other local events. 

£408 £408 Fund - eligible 

CA37 Pheonix Flat Green Lawn 
Bowls Club 

To start the Phoenix Flat Green Lawn Bowls 
Club, the funding would go towards equipment 
and set up costs 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA38 Whaley Bridge Sports 
Association 

They have a 3G pitch and a Pavilion building. 
The pitch is for the wider community and for all 
ages, but it is underused in the Summer months. 
Funding towards advertising the facilities to both 
local families and small company teams, 
coaches for the sessions for the children in the 

£500  £400 Part fund - unable to 
support the cost of 
refreshments and the 
lighting in the car park 
which is owned by High 
Peak Borough Council 

P
age 23



PUBLIC   
 

 

10 
 

Summer and extra lighting for the car park which 
is not very well lit  

CA39 1st Alfreton Brownies New resources are required due to Girlguiding 
UK changing its requirements. Leadership 
Resource Pack, 24 Badge Books and 6 Starter 
Badges Pack  

£340 £340 Fund - eligible 

CA40 Cinema Middleton The purchase of an electronically-operated 
cinema screen, and to pay for a structural 
survey of the building it is proposed to install it 
into. The existing screen require four volunteers, 
is physically demanding, and as a result is 
unfeasible for use by a number of groups 
including the local school 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA41 Whitwell Local History Group To purchase new computer equipment as the 
current equipment fails regularly and is not fit for 
purpose. In addition to improved compatibility, it 
would also make it easier to deliver 
presentations, and make use of social media for 
advertising and communications 

£490 £490 Fund - eligible 

CA42 Furness COGS (Community 
Organising Green Space)  

The purchase of a roller, spreader and aerator to 
help maintain the only public green space in the 
village. 

£493 £493 Fund - eligible 

CA43 emh care and support The hiring of Deda Of Derby dance group to 
host a dance project at the Medway Centre in 
Bakewell for half a day per week for six weeks 
for adults with learning difficulties 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA44 Dronfield Parish Young 
Voices 

To support a number of concerts in May, June 
and July, eight sessions with a vocal coach, hire 
of premises and music folders 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA45 Rhubarb Farm Grub Club The launch of Grub Club where children and 
their parents become more involved in 
horticultural, physical and craft activities in a 
farmyard setting. Funding is required for 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

P
age 24



PUBLIC   
 

 

11 
 

wheelbarrows, forks, trowels, gardening gloves, 
compost and seeds 

CA46 Manchester and East 
Midlands Rail Action 
Partnership 

To design, launch and maintain a website for the 
group, for publicity and information purposes. 

£500 £0 Not fund - unable to 
support lobbying and 
campaigning 

CA47 Holbrook Parish Council - 
Gorsey Piece 

Undertaking improvement works to the Gorsey 
Piece nature reserve so that it can be accessible 
for all (including wheelchairs). 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA48 Health Village Community 
Association 

Purchasing Personal Protective Equipment, 
specialist tools and public liability insurance to 
enable volunteers to maintain the tidy 
appearance of Heath Village, its building and its 
surrounding area 

£500 £250 Part fund - public liability 
insurance not eligible 

CA49 The Rotary Club of Buxton Hiring of the Octagon building in Buxton to run a 
Summer Fair and Charity Bazaar. Approximately 
40 local charities and voluntary organisations 
will be able to showcase their activities. Funding 
towards hire of the premises and printing of 
raffle tickets    

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA50 (The Brockleyteirs) Friends 
of Brockley School 

The creation of a sensory garden for the 
children, including seating areas, plant beds, 
texture pits, which include pebbles, sand, twigs 
and stone  and a musical wall 

£485 £0 Not fund – only available 
to pupils at the school and 
not the wider community  

CA51 Accessible Belper - 
Dementia Theatre 

Production of the play Over the Garden Fence to 
raise awareness for dementia in the community. 
The play has been staged elsewhere and has 
received excellent reviews. The theatre group 
charge £700, which the action grant would 
contribute towards. 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA52 Big Kirk Hallam Community 
Centre - Monkey Trouble 
Toddler Group 

To purchase larger, all-weather play equipment 
to enable the children to play outdoors and also 
to experience more physical, exercise-based 
activities.  

£178 £178 Fund - eligible 

P
age 25



PUBLIC   
 

 

12 
 

CA53 Open Door The launch of a community hub, organising 
social and church activities for the Darley Dale 
community, particularly the disabled, isolated, 
vulnerable and marginalised individuals. The 
funding would purchase four iPads to assist 
young children and adults with autism/learning 
difficulties, specialist visual sensory packs, a 
blackout tent and craft materials. 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA54 Ripley Girlguides & Brownies Replacement of the boiler for the Girl Guides HQ 
building on Outram Street, currently used by 
over 100 girls every week but requires replacing 
in order for the use of the building to continue. 
The total cost of the boiler replacement will be 
£2,000. 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA55 The Wrong Notes The creation of a non-profit weekly singing 
group in Staveley, this is not a choir and there 
will be no auditions. It is aimed at people who 
are isolated, suffering from depression, living in 
poverty and unemployed to improve their well-
being through fun and enjoyment and making 
friends through a sense of belonging to a group  

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA56 Loundsley Green Church 
Children's Holiday Club 

To purchase play equipment for the holiday club 
to include PE equipment, table football, lego, 
basketball net, craft activities and a license to 
show films. The equipment would be used on a 
regular basis throughout the year and for 
various events held at the church 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA57 New Horsley Village Hall The purchase of a large barbeque to be used in 
various fundraising events to hopefully complete 
the £330,000 needed to build the new Village 
Hall.  

£500 £0 Not fund - have not 
supported a barbeque in 
previous application 
rounds 

CA58 Killamarsh Infant and 
Nursery PTA 

A new project to provide free physical activity 
opportunities for families and promote the use of 
outdoor space such as the park. Funding is 

£500 £450 Part fund – refreshments 
not eligible 

P
age 26



PUBLIC   
 

 

13 
 

required to hire two sports coaches and 
promotional materials and refreshments 

CA59 Burbage Band Buxton Project Bass-ic Needs is a fundraising project to 
purchase four new instruments to assist in 
teaching young local people free of charge. 
Contribution towards the cost of the first 
instrument  

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA60 2nd Chellaston Rainbows Food hygiene course for two leaders/two 
volunteers,  sports, cookery, craft and outdoor 
play equipment 

£500 £0 Not fund - based in 
Chellaston within the 
boundaries of Derby City 

CA61 2nd Chellaston Brownies Sports, cookery, craft, activity and outdoor play 
equipment 

£500 £0 Not fund - based in 
Chellaston within the 
boundaries of Derby City 

CA62 Palterton Residents 
Association 

Landscaping and maintenance of a small 'green' 
area that serves as the gateway to the village. 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA63 Holme Hall Unite The existing community garden built specifically 
to enable isolated local residents to meet (which 
won the RHS Most Inspirational Project 2018) is 
still incomplete, funding is required to finish the 
planting. 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA64 The Long Eaton Community 
Space 

The purchase of new toys, craft materials and 
child-sized furniture to be used at the bi-weekly 
dad's group, which is the only one in the area 

£448 £448 Fund - eligible 

CA65 Level Centre Ltd Level wish to produce an art loan scheme of 
visual artworks created by local disabled artists, 
that would be loaned free of charge to local 
cafes, galleries and community spaces. The 
grant would cover the design and print costs of a 
brochure showcasing the artists and their work. 
Also required is a freelance project coordinator 
to curate and photograph the artworks 

£494 £494 Fund - eligible 

CA66 Rhubarb Flowers Group The start of a 6-week flower arranging course for 
the Rhubarb Flowers Group, comprised of 
widowed pensioners who grow flowers to sell to 

£500 £0 Not fund - unable to fund 
the costs of the tutor from 
Derbyshire Adult 

P
age 27



PUBLIC   
 

 

14 
 

businesses but would like to learn flower 
arranging so as to provide arrangements for 
local events, weddings, funerals etc. Local 
children have also expressed interest in 
attending the course. The funding would pay for 
a professional flower arranger sourced from 
Derbyshire Adult Education. 

Education Service as it is 
part of Derbyshire County 
Council  

CA67 Buxton Art Trail 2019 To support the Buxton Art Trail, funding is 
requested for the production of a high-quality 
map to be given to visitors, the hiring of a 
community venue to display larger artwork, and 
the purchase of balloons and bunting to visually 
identify locations as being part of the trail. 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA68 Belper Early Years Fun Funding is requested to support and improve the 
Come & Play and Natural World play groups. To 
include new toys that help develop gross and 
fine motor skills, craft activities, and puppets to 
help teach the children language, story-telling 
and fine control. In addition a contribution 
towards gas and electricity 

£407 £187 Part fund - running costs 
of £220 for gas and 
electricity not eligible 

CA69 Visit New Mills in partnership 
with New Mills Litter pick 
party 

To purchase heavy-duty litter picking equipment 
to include a robust trolley and 6ft long pickers, to 
enable the party to continue their successful 
litter picking projects. The current equipment has 
repeatedly broken as it is not sturdy enough. 
The additional equipment would also enable 
more people to participate, therefore picking 
more litter 

£446 £446 Fund - eligible 

CA70 Recreation in Aston To purchase a cycle rack for residents to use 
whilst using the centre's facilities, and a boot-
banging rail for the sports team to use, which 
would help maintain the centre to a higher level. 

£494 £494 Fund - eligible 

P
age 28



PUBLIC   
 

 

15 
 

CA71 Freeing Abuse and Bullying To fund the relocation of the group classes to a 
larger venue so as to facilitate a larger group of 
people who have suffered bullying / abuse. 

£500 £465 Part fund - unable to fund 
£35 for unforseen costs 

CA72 Derbyshire Blood Bikes The purchase of a projector and audio 
equipment to enable presentations to be given 
to community groups on the subject of 
volunteering in support of public services 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA73 Leopard Explorer Scouts Funding required to purchase new tents, 
camping and expedition equipment for their 
camps and Duke of Edinburgh Award 
expeditions. The existing equipment is over 15 
years old and there is not enough to support the 
size of the group  

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA74 Cromford Canal Group To continue the success of recent monthly litter-
picking events, funding is requested for 
appropriate equipment which until now has been 
loaned from the Derbyshire Wildlife Trust. This 
includes pickers, PPE, hazardous waste bags, 
gloves etc. The appropriate insurances and 
landowner permissions have all been secured 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA75 Furness Vale Local History 
Society  

To print 100 copies of the booklet A Timeline of 
Furness Vale History, this is a reproduction of a 
1960 presentation made by local historian 
Marjorie Hobson. These booklets will be 
presented to Key Stage 2 pupils at the local 
school to help encourage interest in the history 
of the local area and hopefully a greater interest 
in the Society. 

£300 £300 Fund - eligible 

CA78 South Wingfield Pre-School 
Playgroup 

To assist in creating a quiet calm-down area for 
the children, the purchase of comfy seating, 
cushions and floor coverings 

£463 £463 Fund - eligible 

CA79 1st Pilsley Brownies New 'badge / record books' and activity cards 
are required due to Girlguiding UK changing its 
badges and activities 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

P
age 29



PUBLIC   
 

 

16 
 

CA80 Derbyshire Asbestos 
Support Team 

Two events aimed at assisting Derbyshire 
patients of asbestos disease, their carers and 
the bereaved. One will be focussed on keeping 
active, the other focussed on scam awareness. 
Funding is required for venue hire, travel 
expenses, lunch and publicity 

£370 £195 Part fund - unable to fund 
lunch and hot drinks £150 
and travel for the staff £25 

CA81 Ashover Parish Hall A community notice board is required for the 
parish hall, to advertise local businesses and 
things to sell which will benefit the whole village 

£250 £250 Fund - eligible 

CA82 Friends of Bolsover Parks To hire a bungee trampoline attraction to be 
used by all ages at the annual gala 

£500 £0 Not fund - hire of the 
bungee trampoline not 
eligible 

CA83 Wirksworth Community 
Orchestra 

The purchase of music scores to be used in the 
Christmas Concert by Wirksworth Music Centre, 
a volunteer-run organisation teaching music 
from reception age to 18 year olds 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA84 Hodthorpe Community 
Social Club 

To support the annual scarecrow festival, venue 
hire, prize money, advertisement posters, band 
hire, hall / street decorations and refreshments 
would be procured with the grant 

£500 £200 Part fund - unable to fund 
the band for entertainment 
£150, prize money £120  
and £30 for volunteer 
refreshments 

CA85 Shipley Eco-Action Group 
(SEAG) 

Purchase equipment to undertake a range of 
small projects that generally improve the local 
natural environment and promote sustainable 
living. Includes building bird and bat boxes, 
reducing non-native and invasive species, 
planting willow beds, litter-picking, a frugal living 
workshop, seed and vegetable exchange events 
and establishing hedgehog corridors 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA86 Sawley Park Family Fun Day The purchase of a large pop-up gazeebo and 
five trestle tables to be used for the family fun 
day and any other local event, including those 
run by the After School Club and PTA 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

P
age 30



PUBLIC   
 

 

17 
 

CA87 1st Alton Manor Scout Group 
– Beaurepaire Troop 

Funding to assist with travel costs for the scout 
group to attend Haarlem International Scout 
Jamboree in the Netherlands. The scout group 
have already raised £4,000 towards the costs 
over the last 2 years 

£500 £0 Not fund – transport costs 
not eligible 

CA88 Rotary Club of Ilkeston Venue hire and promotional costs for a 'ABBA 
Tribute' charity event, to raise money for local 
worthwhile causes 

£500 £0 Not fund – the event took 
place on 26 April 2019 

CA89 2nd Hasland Rangers A new Ranger group has recently been set up 
and they require numerous resources which 
include a shelter for outdoor activities, 
handbooks, record books, activity cards, 
badges, certificates and National Trust 
membership 

£492 £412 Part fund - unable to 
support the costs of 
National Trust 
membership 

CA90 Transition Chesterfield 
Repair Café 

Advertisement materials to promote the 
relocation of the Repair Café to a new venue 
which is both bigger and more accessible for 
disabled visitors. Also the purchase of various 
equipment to support the Cafe's work, including 
protective mats, a vacuum cleaner and soldering 
iron. 

£475 £475 Fund - eligible 

CA91 Friends of Somersall Park To support two events in Somersall Park in 2019 
which are the annual Picnic in the Park and the 
annual Lantern Parade. These involve the hiring 
of Holymoorside Brass Band for the Lantern 
Parade, Active Derbyshire coaches to offer 
sports to the children at the picnic, printing of 
posters, public liability insurance and RHS 
membership 

£500 £220 Part fund - unable to 
support the cost of the 
brass band, public liability 
insurance and RHS 
membership  

CA92 Swanwick Parish Council 
Well Dressing and 
Community Fayre  

The hiring of a climbing wall at the event to 
complement additional children's music and 
entertainers 

£400 £0 Not fund – hire of a mobile 
climbing wall is not eligible 

CA94 Hognaston Music Group To expand the existing music group including 
increasing the choir's activities and the number 

£452 £402 Part fund - unable to 
support the cost of the 

P
age 31



PUBLIC   
 

 

18 
 

of annual music group concerts. Funding is 
required to buy sheet music, a year's 
subscription to Making Music, a conductor's 
stand and a metronome 

subscription to Making 
Music 

CA95 North Derbyshire WASPI Training of WASPI members in Stagecraft / 
Performance Skills workshops, in order to write 
and perform a new piece of community theatre 
about the increasing retirement age for women 

£500 £0 Not fund - unable to 
support a campaigning 
organisation  

CA96 Scopes4SEN March 2019 Towards the purchase of a laptop with specialist 
educational and astronomical software to assist 
with  presentations in special educational needs 
settings and for community venues 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA97 Stone and Water Buxton 
Pride Picnic 

To support the 2019 Buxton Pride Picnic by 
holding several creativity workshops, which 
require venue hire, material purchases, training 
and promotion 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA98 Chesterfield Co-Operative 
Choral Society 

Funding towards the hiring of professional 
musicians to support the amateur choir when 
they perform in June 2019  

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA99 6th Ilkeston Guides The purchase of three tents and ground sheets 
to replace existing equipment that is worn and 
come to the end of its life expectancy 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA100 Peakdale Village Fete To purchase equipment to hold the village fete 
to include a PA system, folding tables, tombola 
drum and advertising 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA101 1st Hasland Guides Towards the purchase of three 4-berth tents to 

use at Peak 2020 as the exiting tents are not 

watertight 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA102 St Anne's Roman Catholic 

Parish Pastoral Parish 

Council 

The installation of a water heater in the upstairs 

kitchenette as part of the wider renovation of two 

large meeting rooms 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

P
age 32



PUBLIC   
 

 

19 
 

CA103 15th Matlock Scouts The purchase of 12 tables to be used for both 

Scout meetings and also other events that take 

place in the hall 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA104 All Saints CE Junior School 

PTFA 

The purchase of a number of high-quality non-

fiction books which will be the basis of the 

school's new library, which will be available for 

use by the children, their siblings and their 

parents/carers 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA105 Tansleywood Scout Centre To replace the cooking equipment in the main 

hall that is used by many groups including forest 

schools, army reserves and the Forestry 

Commission 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA106 1st Pinxton Brownies To hire a  mini bus to take the Brownies to 

Matlock Farm Park, to purchase new equipment, 

craft materials, handbooks and badgebooks for 

new members  

£500 £200 Part fund - cost of the 
minibus is not eligible 

CA107 1st North Wingfield Scouts Replacing the existing over 20 year-old cooking 

facilities with new equipment to allow the scouts 

to cook their own food 

£487 £487 Fund - eligible 

CA108 Mahabba Cooking The formation of a cooking group where the 

three local Syrian refugee families teach local 

British people how to cook Syrian food, and vice 

versa. The proposal is for four sessions 

involving six to ten people per session. Funding 

is required for venue hire and to purchase 

equipment and general kitchen utensils 

£494 £494 Fund - eligible 

CA109 Litton Parish Council Garden 

of Remembrance 

Transformation of the existing garden of 

remembrance to offer more seating and more 

£500 £0 Not fund - unable to 
support this as it is the 

P
age 33



PUBLIC   
 

 

20 
 

space for memorials. The Parish Council will 

stage community planting events to allow the 

community to participate in the improvements. 

The majority of the funding would be spent on 

plants. 

responsibility of the parish 
council  

CA110 Litton Parish Council Litton 

Mill Community Garden 

Transformation of a currently empty border on 

the village green, to purchase topsoil, install 

timber edging and purchase shrubs and plants. 

This supports the Litton community garden 

group to continue to improve local green space 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA111 Blue Box Belper Two continue to build on the success of two 

regular events Cuppa-Cake-Chat and Chair-

obics that support older, isolated and lonely 

residents on the Parks Estate in Belper. The 

funding would be spent on food hygiene training 

for volunteers, venue hire and publicity costs 

£494 £494 Fund - eligible 

CA112 North Derbyshire Refugee 

Support Group 

To run Summer activities for Syrian refugees in 

the Chesterfield, Bolsover and North East 

Derbyshire areas. Funding is required for 

volunteer expenses, venue hire, crafts and 

games and hiring of specialist instructors 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA113 Parish of Whaley Bridge 

Stay & Play 

Purchase of toys and equipment for baby and 

toddler play sessions, currently they are having 

to be borrowed from parents attending the 

sessions. In addition training for volunteers in 

food hygiene. 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA114 National Childbirth Trust 

Long Eaton Bumps & Babies 

Purchase of new toys for the children, storage 

chest and safe drinking vessels for the parents 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

P
age 34



PUBLIC   
 

 

21 
 

to accommodate the increasing numbers of 

attendees 

CA115 Milford Community Advisory 

Forum Social Kitchen 

Redecorating the kitchen and small social room, 

purchasing a tea urn, a cooker and training one 

volunteer in Food Hygiene and Safety so that 

the areas can be used to host community events 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA116 Swanwick Pre-School The purchase of an activity climbing frame and 

curved walkway beam to complement existing 

outdoor activities. It is envisaged they will 

improve children's balance and core strength 

£483 £483 Fund - eligible 

CA117 Glossop Arts Project Mosaic 

Project 

The production of a mosaic over summer 2019 

to celebrate the Five Ways to Wellbeing. The 

grant would be spent on venue hire, art 

materials and other resources which includes 

insurance and finances 

£500 £400 Part fund - insurance and 
finances not eligible 

CA118 The Great Kinder Beer 

Barrel Challenge 

Towards two or three all-weather industrial 

gazebos to provide shelter for ever-increasing 

numbers of spectators. The gazebos would be 

available for use at other local events, such as 

Edale Bonfire Night and Edale Country Day 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA119 Friends of Monkey Park To invest in targeted marketing (posters, flyers 

and boosted Facebook posts) to raise 

awareness of the ongoing fundraising campaign 

to replace the play equipment in Chester Street 

Park. To carry out public consultation and to 

advertise the Family Fun Day in July 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

P
age 35



PUBLIC   
 

 

22 
 

CA120 Monkey Park CIC Sewing The purchase of two sewing machines, sundry 

materials and marketing resources. The group 

currently has 30 attendees and they would like 

to include local people who have not got their 

own sewing machines. To run education 

sessions and joining with the makers corner 

initiative which aims to sell goods   

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA121 Hulland Community Pre-

School 

Towards the purchase of a £2,000 sun shade, 

as the outdoor space is currently completely 

unshaded and so children spend limited time 

outside. They would also like to add smaller 

installations to promote outdoor activities such 

as bird boxes and bug houses 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA122 People of Whitfield Funding to facilitate a new weekly yoga session 

at the local community centre. Open to all ages, 

it would initially be free to attend but after three 

months would become self-sustaining through 

fees. The grant would cover initial yoga 

instructor charges, basic yoga equipment and 

venue hire. 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA123 Parkside High CIC Funding to deliver the 'Fit and Fed' programme 

of providing children and young people in 

Cotmanhay opportunities to take part in sport 

and physical activity. The grant would be spent 

on meals and staffing costs.  

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA124 Hole in the Wall Launch of the Community Craft Zone, an 

intergenerational project that will give older 

community members the chance to meet and 

share skills with young people. Funding required 

£500 £450 Part fund -  refreshments 
not eligible 

P
age 36



PUBLIC   
 

 

23 
 

for a sewing machine, laptop, and wood and 

fabric materials. 

CA125 Blue Box Belper Free picnic lunches and activities for local 

families throughout the summer holidays every 

Friday for six weeks. Costs include Food 

Hygiene certificates, craft materials, smoothie 

bike and or climbing wall and publicity. 

£500 £0 Not fund – unable to go 
ahead this Summer 

CA126 Revive Church Stay & Play New equipment and resources for the 

successful Stay and Play mornings that take 

place over two or three mornings every holiday 

for 0-10 year olds. New kitchen equipment 

including Food Hygiene certificate, craft 

supplies, various toys and games, and publicity.  

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA127 1st Buxton Scout Group Both the kitchen and toilets at the scout hut 

need renovating. They are currently extending 

the front of the hut to install toilets and showers 

using funding they have raised and volunteers 

are undertaking the work   

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CA128 Wirksworth Carnival To purchase five walkie-talkies for the annual 

carnival which takes place this year on 25, 26 

and 27 May 

£495 £495 Fund - eligible 

CA129 Bolsover Methodist Church 

Community Week 

To hold a community week from 22 - 26 July 

which will provide a range of free activities to 

suit all ages. This includes toddler group, youth 

group, children's group, craft night, advertising, 

training and hire of the Assembly Room for the 

toddlers club 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

  Total £59,370 £47,511  

P
age 37



PUBLIC   
 

 

24 
 

 

 
Appendix B – Small Grants Community Safety 

Ref Application Title Brief description Funding 
requested 

Funding 
Allocated 

Panel Decision 
 

CS012S Community Growth CIC 
(BMX) 

Provision of lessons on BMX bikes, area is 
amongst the 10% most deprived. This will 
diversionary activity will reduce address ASB 
and crime for young people 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CS013S Matlock Green Scout & 
Guide Group 

Request to replace doors on the scout hut. 
Damage has been caused by ASB. Scout group 
are looking to develop building to encourage 
community to once again use the hut by being 
made to feel safer and less intimidated by the 
ASB in the area. 

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

CS014S Buxton Business Alert Produce leaflets and stickers to advertise 
Buxton business alert messaging system   

£500 £500 Fund - eligible 

  Total £1,500 £1,500  

 

 

P
age 38


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4(a) Derbyshire School Holiday Food Programme
	4(b) Grant funding to Shift Together to deliver the Fit4Life Programme in workplaces across Derbyshire
	4(c) Reducing the Harm of Substance Misuse in Derbyshire
	5 Action Grants Programme

